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SECTION ONE

MESSAGE FROM COLLEGE COUNCIL
CHAIRPERSON

MESSAGE FROM THE
COLLEGE COUNCIL
CHAIRPERSON
Mr P.P Magagula,
College Council
Chairperson

I am indeed honoured to
present the College’s 2014
Annual Report. The report
reflects on the collective achievements realised
during the year of review in a range of activities all
of which converge to effective curriculum delivery.

partners, private –public partnerships in supporting
the diverse programmes offered at the College and
we are indebted to the Commitment demonstrated
by our partners, private-public partnerships in
supporting the diverse programmes offered at the
College.

As a College Council we are steadfast in pursuing the
vision of the TVET sector that of skilling the nation
with the purpose of enhancing employability but
most importantly the College vision of being the
leading College brand in South Africa.

As the College Council we pride into the excellent
academic achievement that the College keeps
producing year in and year out. Our special gratitude
is extended to the cohort of dedicated and committed
staff members who work relentlessly hard in pursuit
of agreed targets. We are a council tasked with the
oversight role amongst others to ensure that we
are a corrupt free college. The college council has
committed to itself to a zero tolerence of any form
of fraud or corruption.

The College Council continued to play their oversight
role of governance in ensuring that all statutory
structures where in place, enabling policies were
developed, implemented and monitored. We are
also intending to review some of the policies to be
in line with the amended legislations of DHET and
ensure that we put structures in place that will best
assist the college to realise its aims and objectives of
delivering quality education.
The evolution in the College sector has placed high
expectations on the Colleges to expand access,
increase capacity to manage and govern themselves.
We are humbled to assert that GS College is marching
in the desired direction and better positioned to
respond to new challenges.
The Portfolio Committee of the Department of
Education and Training visited colleges across the
country during the course of 2014 and 2015. The
visits were aimed at obtaining first-hand information
from Colleges regarding challenges that confronted
them. As College Council we will continue pulling
our weight behind noble initiatives, programmes
and activities that are likely to benefit the college
and welcome any enabling resources be it financial,
advisory, material or physical which has the potential
of enhancing increased access and we guarantee
potential partners of the optional use of such
resources for the benefit of the SA nation. We are
indebted to the commitment demonstrated by our
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I will have failed the College Council if I do not pass
our sincere appreciation to the Department of Higher
Educaton and Training (DHET) for making funds
available for bursary allocation to those financially
needy, but academically able students. This bursary
contributed significantly to the evident increased
access manifesting to high enrolment figures at
Colleges, Gert Sibande is no exception to this reality.
In conclusion, the College Council warns all stakeholders against the dangers of complacency. All
attached to the College in whichever role are
challenged to live to the principle of continuous
improvement, a principle that has become
synonymous to Gert Sibande TVET College.

“Education is the most powerful weapon
which you can use to change the world.”

Signature

SECTION TWO

OVERVIEW BY PRINCIPAL AND CEO

OVERVIEW BY PRINCIPAL
AND CEO
Nick Balkrishen, CEO
and Principal of Gert
Sibande TVET College

It is with great sense of humility as well as pride that I pen this overview of Gert
Sibande TVET College for 2014 – a year of significant progress. The overview will
provide information on some key milestones, achievements, challenges and future
plans. The overview will focus on activities linked to the core business of teaching and learning and it will also
analyse the main performance indicators of the college.

COLLEGE APEX PRIORITIES LINKED TO NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2030:
The National Development Plan (NDP) 2030 provides a praiseworthy blueprint to eliminate unemployment
and reduce poverty by 2030. According to the plan, “South Africa can realise these goals by drawing on the
energies of its people, growing an inclusive economy, building capabilities, enhancing the capacity of the
state, and promoting leadership and partnerships throughout society.” The NDP 2030 prioritises the youth
and sets a number of tangible targets for 2030 including:
•
•
•

INCREASED ACCESS: Strengthen and expand the number of technical and vocational education and
training (TVET) colleges to increase the participation rate to 25%.
INCREASED FINANCIAL AID: Progressively provide full funding assistance covering tuition, books,
accommodation and living allowance to students from poor families by 2030.
IMPROVED STUDENT PERFORMANCE: Increase the graduation rate of TVET colleges to 75% by 2030.

Gert Sibande TVET College welcomed the NDP blueprint and aligned its own strategic
priorities and targets with those of the NDP

GERT SIBANDE COLLEGE EXCELS AT APEX PRIORITIES IN 2014:
Apex Priority 1: Increased Access: The NDP and NSDS 111 enrolment target for TVET colleges is 4 million
students by 2030. In 2013, 713 000 students were enrolled at colleges. While 4 million enrolments remain a
very challenging target to meet by 2030, the increased demand for spaces in 2014 augurs well for potential
accelerated growth in the college sector. Balfour Campus opened its doors for the first time in January 2014
and enrolled a total of 210 students. The College experienced an overall increase of 10% in enrolment resulting
in the college surpassing 11 000 students for the first time in its history.
The past few years saw Gert Sibande TVET College investing greatly in infrastructure to accommodate the
planned increased enrolment. The College spent R23 million in 2014 on various infrastructure projects
including the building of classrooms, workshops, offices and Student Support Centres in all campuses.
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NCV ENROLMENT

Apex Priority 2: Increased Financial Aid: The bursaries provided by DHET impacted significantly on improving
access especially for students from financially needy homes. The College’s target of assisting 100% of all
qualifying needy students with tuition fees in 2014 was realised through the financial support received from
DHET. DHET increased bursary funding to Gert Sibande College from R41m in 2013 to R59,7m in 2014. This
amount made it possible to assist 3412 students from financially needy homes. Eskom, National Skills Fund
(NSF) and ETDP SETA also supplemented the DHET bursary funding by assisting a further 119 students with
an amount of R2,3m. The challenge experienced by the college was that not all students who qualified for
accommodation and travel aid could be helped due to the large need and limited funding for accommodation
and travel assistance.
BURSARY FUNDING

Apex Priority 3: Improved student performance: While increasing access is important, attaining high levels
of student achievement is critical. The success and quality of vocational teaching and learning is measured
by student performance. The performance of the NCV class of 2014 was praiseworthy indeed. Students, staff
and parents must be congratulated on producing another sterling performance.
For the NCV, the College achieved a Certification Rate of 55% (target 60%) and a subject pass rate of 85%
(target 90%). These praiseworthy performances enabled the college to retain its status as the top performing
College in Mpumalanga and remain amongst the best performing colleges in the country. The quality of the
passes also improved significantly. Three students obtained a full house of seven distinctions. The efforts
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of staff to consistently “raise the academic performance bar” must be applauded. Ermelo Campus needs
to be singled out for attaining the “top performing NCV campus” award with a certification rate of 57% and
a subject pass rate of 87%. A special mention must be made of Balfour Campus, which opened its doors in
2014, and managed the best NCV Level 2 pass rate of 87%.

2014 NCV CERTIFICATION RATE

For Report 191, the subject pass rate increased from 57% in 2013 to 67% in 2014. Sibanesetfu Campus must
be congratulated on their award for the “top performing Report 191 campus” with a subject pass rate of 78%.

One should not lose sight of the impact that high quality student performance has on
enhancing opportunity for employment and changing lives.

WORKPLACE BASED EXPERINCE (WBE): AN OVERWHELMING SUCCESS
WBE is a powerful vehicle to give students the opportunity to effectively integrate the theory of the classroom
with the practice and the responsibility of the workplace. It is mutually beneficial as it also provides the
employer an opportunity to evaluate the quality of the student and the qualification. Gert Sibande TVET
College set a target of placing 1600 students in the WBE programme for 2014. The support from the college’s
business partners was overwhelming which resulted in 2038 students participating in WBE.

STUDENT PLACEMENT IN THE WORKPLACE
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ZERO TOLERANCE AGAINST FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The College remains committed in ensuring that the zero tolerance targets against fraud and corruption
set by the College Council is met and maintained. Consequently, during 2014, staff members who were
found guilty of salary related fraud were dismissed. More stringent controls were immediately put in place to
minimise the risk of recurrence.

SUCCESSFUL ISO 9001 CERTIFICATION BY SABS
The college target of retaining its ISO 9001 accreditation for the year 2014 was met after the South African
Bureau of Standards (SABS) performed a series of quality audits on all College sites to ensure compliance to
the ISO 9001 standards. Besides the ISO 9001 being an international benchmark for quality assurance, it also
compels the college to implement various policies and procedures that are required by law.

NUMBER OF COLLEGE PARTNERSHIPS HAS GROWN SIGNIFICANTLY
A key priority on the strategic plan of the college was to increase partnerships with relevant stakeholders. The
college signed a total of 24 partnership agreements, in 2014, with various SETAs, NGOs, business partners and
other government departments taking the total number of partnerships to 58. Arguably the most important
of these was the partnership between the college, SASOL and CHIETA SETA to train more than 120 plant
operators for the chemical industry.

HISTORY IN THE MAKING AS TWO GERT SIBANDE COLLEGE STUDENTS VISIT THE UK
Gert Sibande TVET College sent the two best performing students,
judged over a three year period, in Business and Engineering
programmes, to the United Kingdom in April 2014. This initiative
was part of the UK/SA “Skills for Employability” partnership
that commenced in 2013. The students were based at North
Hertfordshire College in Stevenage near London for a period
of three weeks. They participated in an entrepreneurship and
project management programme. Congratulations to Mbalenhle
Xaba and Innocent Luvuno who were chosen to represent Gert
Sibande TVET College in this once in a lifetime opportunity.

RETENTION RATE AND ATTENDANCE RATE TARGETS ACHIEVED
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The College retention rate of 91% (Target: 90%) and student attendance rate of 80% (Target: 80%) is
praiseworthy and must be maintained.

IMPROVED ACCESS FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES: SKILLS CENTRE FOR BETHAL
Expanding the footprint of Gert Sibande TVET College to all corners of the region, especially the rural areas,
remains a key priority and focus area for the college. The College was delighted when a partnership agreement
between Gert Sibande College, CETA and Govan Mbeki Municipality paved the way for a Skills Centre in
Bethal. The Skills Centre will be built with funding from CETA. The land was generously donated to the College
by the Govan Mbeki municipality. the College remains eternally grateful to these partners. It is anticipated
that the construction will commence in the second half of 2015 with skills training planned to start in 2016. It
is the fervent hope of the College that the Skills Centre will provide the Bethal community with skills that will
enable them to become part of the employed workforce.

GOVERNANCE: NEW COLLEGE COUNCIL MEMBERS APPOINTED
The term of office of the outgoing College Council came to an end on 31 December 2013. The Minister of
Higher education and Training, Dr Blade Nzimande appointed five new external College Council members.
Gert Sibande College was pleased to learn that three members of the previous College Council, ex-chairperson
- Dudu Thwala, Mervin Purchase and Linda Tshabalala, were reappointed as this will maintain continuity and
stability in the college council. Musa Luthuli and Petros Magagula are the two new ministerial appointees.
Based on specific skills needed by the college council an additional three external College council members
were appointed (V. Harmse, A. Beeka, and F.B. Mtshali). The term of office for the new College Council is
from 2014 to 2018. Mr Magagula and Ms Thwala were elected as the chairperson and deputy chairperson,
respectively.

LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE AWARD FOR GERST SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
The College received a PMR Africa Diamond award on the 14th November 2014. This is the fifth consecutive
year that the College received a PMR award for excellence in governance and leadership and the third year
that the College was rated in the Diamond category (Highest award). The award is based on the perception of
about 160 senior managers in Mpumalanga.
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5 YEAR CELEBRATION BROCHURE PUBLISHED
A special five year celebration brochure was published in 2014 to recognise and document the work of the
college council who served the College with distinction from 2009 to 2013. The brochure paid tribute to
their vision, dedication, support and integrity. The college council, who mainly played an oversight role, also
provided invaluable support and guidance which created a fertile environment in which Gert Sibande TVET
College could thrive. Gert Sibande TVET College was truly blessed to have individuals of their calibre serving
on the college council from 2009 to 2013.

GERT SIBANDE COLLEGE BIDS FAREWELL TO TWO MANAGEMENT MEMBERS
Mr Veli Mabena (Deputy Director: Corporate affairs) was promoted to Principal and CEO of Maluti TVET
College in October 2014. Mr Elias Mbuyane, who was based at the provincial office of DHET was seconded
to act in this post. Mr Marthinus Loots, the college CFO was appointed as the Head of Infrastructure at
Mpumalanga Department of Education in August 2014. Mrs Susan Nichols, the college internal auditor, was
appointed to act as the CFO. DHET appointed Mr John Hedding, as part of the SAICA support CFO programme,
to support the college in financial management.

2014 ENDS ON A HIGH NOTE AS GSC WINS INAUGURAL DHET ICT AWARD

FLTR: College Council chairperson, Petros Magagula, Deputy Minister, Mduduzi Manana, College Principal and CEO Nick
Balkrishen, Director General, Gwebs Qonde and Deputy Principal: Academic, Hester van Zyl

On 18 November 2014, Gert Sibande TVET College won the coveted DHET ICT award at an inaugural TVET
awards gala dinner hosted by the Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training at Gallagher Estate,
Midrand. Of the nine categories awarded, GSC was nominated for 6 categories which was the highest
number of nominations for any college in the country. The categories ranged from Academic, Finance, ICT,
Partnerships to Artisan Development. Congratulations to the entire GSC team who contributed toward this
prestigious award.

FUTURE PLANS AND TARGETS
The college is looking forward to expanding its training sites in Perdekop and Bethal and growing the newly
established Balfour Campus, in an effort to expand its vocational education and training footprint to both
peri-urban and rural areas of Gert Sibande region.
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The college is committed to continuous improvement in all its activities at all levels as it
endeavours to serve the community with distinction.
For 2015, the certification rate target has been set at 62% while the subject pass rate was set at 90%. The
focus on improving the quality of teaching and learning, WBE for students and lecturers, improved fraud
prevention measures, increasing access and improving student performance will remain apex priorities for
Gert Sibande College in 2015.

MESSAGE OF GRATITUDE
The various successes enjoyed by Gert Sibande TVET College in 2014 would not have been achieved without
the diligence of the College Council, Management, Staff, SRC and Students, Mpumalanga Department of
Education (MDoE) and DHET who worked synergistically to strengthen the college in so many important ways.
Further support from the entire college community during 2015 is required to help the college achieve its
vision of becoming the leading college brand in South Africa so that the college can serve its communities
with pride and distinction.

30 June 2015
Signature
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SECTION THREE

MESSAGE FROM CURRICULUM
DIRECTORATE

CURRICULUM ANNUAL
REPORT 2014
Hester van Zyl,
Deputy CEO
Carriculum and
Academic Affairs

Gert Sibande TVET College has once again emerged as one of the top performing
Colleges in the country by excelling in the November 2014 external examinations.

Curriculum Team at Head Office

NATIONAL CERTIFICATE VOCATIONAL RESULTS

An amazing number of 1401 distinctions for the National Certificate Vocational (NCV) programme Level 2 to
Level 4 were obtained with an overall subject pass rate of 85% and a certification rate of 55%.
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Although the target of 62% set by the College Council for NCV certification for 2014 was not reached, the
College still managed to achieve a Certification Rate of 55% which was 23% above the National Certification
Rate for 2014. Ermelo Campus was awarded the trophy for the Top Performing Campus for 2014 with
a certification rate of 57% and a Subject Pass Rate of 87% to their delight as they repeated their 200??
Accomplishment. Evander Campus was crowned “Most Improved Campus”. Balfour Campus which opened
its doors in 2014, managed to perform the best for NCV Level 2 with a Subject Pass Rate of 86.7%.

Ermelo Campus: receives a trophy for the best performing campus in NCV
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BRILIANT INDIVIDUAL STUDENT PERFORMANCES
What really excited the College, was that four students obtained a full house of 7 distinctions from 7 subjects.
SG Hlophe from Sibanesetfu Campus was the overall best NCV achiever for 2014 with 7 distinctions and an
average of 89.4% for Electrical Infrastructure Construction Level 3. Simphiwe Hlophe also made history by
being the first student in the College to obtain a 100% pass rate for Mathematics NCV Level 3.
Two students from Standerton Campus
obtained 7 distinctions each. J. Mputhi,
who is the 2nd best performer in
the college, obtained 7 distinctions
with an average of 88.1% for Office
Administration L3 and SR Selepe 7
distinctions with an average of 85.9%
also for Office Administration L3.

Sibanesetfu Campus Manager, Mpho Ramulifho, together with the
Deputy CEO Academic Affairs, Ms Hester van Zyl, congratulate Simphiwe
Hlophe for achieving 100% pass mark in Mathematics

The top performing students for Level 4 Business Studies and Engineering Studies respectively are N.A Zulu
with 4 distinctions and an average of 81.7% from Standerton Campus for Office Administration and N.L
Mbokane with 3 distinctions at an average of 79.9% from Sibanesetfu Campus for Civil Engineering
The Top 10 Achievers for the College according to the hightest average percentage are as follows:

1. HLOPHE, SG
1. MPUTHI, J
2. MOLOI, PSA
2. NKOSI, LT
1. BHEMBE, Z
1. MKHABELA, PM
2. MANANA, MT
3. SELEPE, SR
3. NKOSI, PN
1. MVUNDLA, PS

CAMPUS
Sibanesetfu
Standerton
Standerton
Sibanesetfu
Ermelo
Ermelo
Ermelo
Standerton
Ermelo
Balfour

PROGRAMME
Electrical Construction L3
Office Administration L3
Electrical Construction L3
Marketing L3
Finance and Accounting L2
Marketing L3
Finance and Accounting L2
Office Administration L3
Office Administration L2
Office Administration L2

DISTINCTIONS
7
7
5
6
6
6
6
7
6
5

AVERAGE
89,4%
88,1%
87,3%
86,9%
86,7%
86,0%
86,0%
85,9%
85,0%
84,9%

An award ceremony was held at each campus during February where all top performing students were
recognised and rewarded with incentives such as laptops, tablets and certificates.
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MATHEMATICS AND MATHEMATICAL LITERACY
The Curriculum Section is proud to report on the Pass Rates for NCV Mathematics and Mathematical Literacy
where the overall targets set for 2014 have been exceeded, especially for Mathematics L3 which shows an
improvement of 7% on the Subject Pass Rate from 2013 and Mathematical Literacy where the overall target
is exceeded by 4%.
LEVEL
LEVEL 2
LEVEL 3
LEVEL 4
TOTAL

2013
73%
61%
62%
67%

MATHEMATICS
2014
TARGET 2014
70%
68%
68%
65%
54%
66%
66%
65%

MATHEMATICAL LITERACY
2013
2014
TARGET 2014
89%
89%
83%
86%
86%
88%
93%
93%
87%
89%
89%
85%

REPORT 191 (NATED) PROGRAMMES
The Trimester 1, 2, 3 and Semester 1 and 2 results were combined to yield the average Report 191 (Nated)
subject pass rates for 2014. Although the Business Studies results increased slightly from 80% in 2013 to
81% in 2014, the Engineering Studies results increased remarkably from 57% in 2013 to 67% in 2014. The
Certification rate for Engineering Studies also improved with 10% from 34% in 2013 to 44% in 2014 where the
focus was on quality tuition, offering of full time classes as far as possible and intervention strategies to assist
students enrolled for Engineering Studies Programmes to improve on their results. The Subject Pass Rate for
Report 191 Mathematics improved from 58% in 2013 to an astonishing 72% in 2014 and also exceeded the
target of 62%

REPORT 191 (NATED) PROGRAMMES
BUSINESS STUDIES
ENGINEERING STUDIES
MATHEMATICS REPORT 191

Subject Pass Rate
2013
2014
Target
2014
80%
81%
80%
57%
67%
80%
58%
72%
62%

Certification Rate
2013
2014
Target
2014
55%
54%
50%
34%
44%
50%
-

Sibanesetfu Campus was awarded the
Best Performing campus for Report
191 (Nated) Programmes in 2014 with
a Subject Pass Rate of 78%

Sibanesetfu Campus receives a trophy for the best performing campus in
Report 191 Programme,

Once again the results can be
attributed to highly committed team
players at all levels as well as the
high quality of teaching and learning.
The College and Campus Academic
Improvement Plans were cascaded to
the lowest level i.e. commencing with
the lecturer in class who analysed
results after each assessment cycle
and was part of setting individual
targets for academic improvement and
implementing intervention strategies
at campuses.
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Additional Intervention Strategies that were implemented in 2014 to improve Academic Performance are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Quarterly support visits by the Executive Management Teams to campuses and support class visits to
lecturers by Campus Management to ensure optimal curriculum delivery
Lecturers are in class on time doing what is expected of them
Incentives to reward academic excellence based on both external and internal assessment results.
The College has a fully functional Academic Board wich meets quarterly to oversee the quality of
teaching and learning
The SRC played a pivotal role in reinforcing academic achievement through group study sessions and
involvement of peer tutors and educators
Road shows are conducted on study skills and examination techniques
Targets are set for Workplace Based Experience for students
53 Lecturers were placed for Work Integrated Learning
Winter School Programmes and structured revision programmes before each examination
Khuphula (web based support system) for lecturers and students
Bridging programmes including Learnscapes
Introducing E-books in the classroom

ATTENDANCE AND RETENTION RATES
The Academic, Financial, and Student Wellness Programmes that are offered to students through Student
Support Services at the various campuses are all directed towards enhancing success rates and improving
attendance and retention. The correct choice of programmes through placement tests conducted, proper
career guidance and counselling are all contributing factors to a holistic student approach.
An early alert Student Referral System is in place to ensure immediate intervention when poor academic
performance and/or class attendance is detected. The College will endeavour to continuously improve on
existing strategies to reach and exceed the targets set by the College Council for Attendance and Retention.

100% OF PLANNED PROGRAMMES IMPLEMENTED IN 2014
Gert Sibande TVET College is committed to be responsive to the needs of the community it serves. In May
of each academic year, the Academic Board revisits the impact of current programmes that are offered by
the various sites and recommends new programmes to address the needs of the area in which a campus is
located. Besides offering generic programmes, niche programmes and or subjects are offered by campuses.
LEVEL 2
Programme
Civil Engineering and Building
Construction
Electrical Infrastructure Construction
Engineering and Related Design
Mechatronics
Information Technology and Computer
Sciences
Finance, Economics and Accounting
Management
Marketing
Office Administration
Hospitality
Primary Health
TOTAL
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NCV - 2014 ENROLMENT NUMBERS
Balfour
Ermelo
Evander
Planned Actual Planned Actual Planned Actual

Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual

Standerton
Planned Actual

105

76

70

67

-

-

105

79

90

71

-

-

105
-

106
-

105
70
70

114
102
68

105
-

102
-

140
70
-

139
69
-

-

-

-

-

-

10

-

-

-

-

105
210

118
194

70
70
105
70
490

97
71
176
106
623

70
105
105
525

99
70
169
622

175
175
560

150
183
514

70
140
70
580

72
184
74
609

LEVEL 3
Programme
Civil Engineering and Building Construction
Electrical Infrastructure Construction
Engineering and Related Design
Mechatronics
Information Technology and Computer Science
Finance, Economics and Accounting
Management
Marketing
Office Administration
Hospitality
Primary Health
TOTAL

Ermelo
Planned Actual
54
42
74
61
63
51
52
48
140
134
61
60
444
396

Evander
Planned Actual
107
68
66
53
45
31
54
40
62
52
102
92
436
336

Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual
57
52
48
44
94
94
152
150
351
340

Standerton
Planned Actual
49
37
91
72
55
48
147
140
55
48
397
345

LEVEL 4
Programme
Civil Engineering and Building Construction
Electrical Infrastructure Construction
Engineering and Related Design
Mechatronics
Information Technology and Computer Science
Finance, Economics and Accounting
Management
Marketing
Office Administration
Hospitality
Primary Health
TOTAL

Ermelo
Planned Actual
40
38
62
59
39
35
39
35
94
82
274
249

Evander
Planned Actual
64
53
46
42
10
10
42
35
47
35
64
48
273
223

Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual
56
59
100
82
148
134
304
275

Standerton
Planned Actual
24
16
57
51
46
45
109
104
44
39
280
255

												

												
LEVEL 2-4
Programme
Civil Engineering and
Building Construction
Electrical Infrastructure
Construction
Engineering and Related
Design
Mechatronics
Information Technology
and Computer Science
Finance, Economics and
Accounting
Management
Marketing
Office Administration
Hospitality
Primary Health
TOTAL

Balfour
Planned Actual

Ermelo
Planned Actual

Evander
Planned Actual

105

76

164

147

-

-

241

226

276

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

105
210

Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual

Standerton
Planned Actual

College
Planned Actual

218

190

163

124

650

537

235

153

146

288

262

958

869

182

197

-

-

70

69

252

266

-

115

99

-

-

-

-

115

99

-

-

10

10

-

-

-

-

10

10

-

172

183

166

174

-

-

-

-

338

357

118
194

161
339
131
1208

154
392
166
1268

105
109
271
1234

70
87
309
1181

369
475
1215

326
467
1129

171
396
169
1257

165
428
161
1209

105
810
1586
169
131
5124

70
732
1714
161
166
4981
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ENGINEERING STUDIES
Programme
Engineering Studies N1
Engineering Studies N2
Engineering Studies N3
TOTAL N1-N3
Engineering Studies N4
Engineering Studies N5
Engineering Studies N6
TOTAL N4-N6
TOTAL N1-N6

REPORT 191 - 2014 FET’s
Ermelo
Evander
Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual Planned Actual Planned Actual
50
56.89
100
64.64
20
26.49
50
104.21
100
126.28
17
38.07
50
85.55
100
166.85
8
30.32
150
246.65
300
357.77
45
94.88
50
59.14
100
89.55
15
8.66
34
44.23
67
53.15
10
6.25
17
29.49
34
29.41
5
4.91
101
132.86
201
172.11
30
19.82
251
379.51
501
529.88
75
114.70

Standerton
Planned Actual
27
25.49
27
24.32
20
15.24
74
65.05
15
29.07
10
13.99
5
7.58
30
50.64
104
115.69

College
Planned Actual
197
173.51
194
292.88
178
297.96
569
764.35
180
186.42
121
117.62
61
71.39
362
375.43
931
1139.78

BUSINESS STUDIES
Programme
Business Management N4
Business Management N5
Business Management N6
TOTAL: Business Management N4-N6
Financial Management N4
Financial Management N5
Financial Management N6
TOTAL: Financial Management N4-N6
Marketing Management N4
Marketing Management N5
Marketing Management N6
TOTAL: Marketing Management N4-N6
Management Assistant N4
Management Assistant N5
Management Assistant N6
TOTAL: Management Assistant N4-N6
TOTAL N4-N6

Ermelo
Planned Actual
20
43
15
31.5
13
15
48
89.5
12
12
35
84
30
41
15
32.5
80
157.5
128
259

Standerton
Planned Actual
20
13
15
10.5
13
11
48
34.5
15
17.5
10
12
8
11.5
33
41
20
17
15
8.5
35
25.5
35
35.5
30
28.5
15
26
80
90
196
191

College
Planned Actual
60
73.00
45
55.50
39
37.00
144
165.50
35
39.00
25
28.50
21
25.50
81
93.00
40
53.50
30
24.50
70
78.00
135
193.50
120
146.00
60
96.50
315
436.00
610
772.50

										
Evander
Planned Actual
20
17
15
13.5
13
11
48
41.5
20
21.5
15
16.5
13
14
48
52
30
25
30
20.5
15
15.5
75
61
171
154.5

Sibanesetfu
Planned Actual
20
24.5
15
16
35
40.5
35
49
30
56
15
22.5
80
127.5
115
168

CURRICULUM HIGHLIGHTS
The Report 191 Graduation ceremony held in May at the Johannes Stegman Theatre in Secunda, paid tribute
to 184 Report 191 students who obtained their Diplomas after being placed successfully in the workplace to
complete the Practical leg of their qualification. Another highlight on the Academic Calendar is always the
Level 4 Graduation Ceremonies which were conducted at the various campus communities on 8 August 2014.
The college is proud of the exponential increase in the number of students graduating.
539 NCV Level 4 graduates will commence with their journey to not only sustain themselves, but to embark
on life- long learning.
The annual Academic Day event held in August at Evander Campus was also celebrated in style by students
from all campuses. The day was a showcase of the development of their communication, mathematical,
poetry, arts and culture and culinary skills.
As part of its community development programme, the College has decided to once again provide Maths and
Science classes for Grade 12 learners in the Lekwa Municipality area. This initiative forms part of a strategy
to address the skills shortages in the country especially in the Engineering related fields where Mathematics
and Physical Science are regarded as critical subjects. Apart from the structured revision classes, Grade 12
learners were also issued with resource packs of past year examination papers and memoranda. Career
guidance talks also formed part of the programme which was well received by all Grade 12 learners.
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PARTNERSHIP WITH UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA TO OFFER NCV PRIMARY
HEALTH LEVEL 2
A partnership between the University of Pretoria (UP) and Gert Sibande TVET College is the first in the country
where a multi model Learning Programme was followed, and Learning actually happened in the workplace.
35 Community Health Workers who are deployed in Mamelodi, were enrolled through the Ermelo campus for
the Primary Health Level 2 Programme.
The model includes:
1.
Formal contact sessions for the theoretical component which were delivered by facilitators from UP
with the support of the Gert Sibande Curriculum Unit and Programme Coordinators
2.
On-line support through our Khuphula Learner management system to access resources and common
assessments
3.
Self -Learning through practical exposure in the work place as these students are currently working in
the Community Health field
The project will be extended to other areas in the Tshwane District Municipality in 2015 provided that funding
is obtained.

SHARING BEST PRACTICES ON INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL LEVEL
The first phase of the “Skills for Employability” Partnership between Gert Sibande TVET College and two
UK Colleges was concluded in June 2014. The project with Highbury College (Portsmouth) and North
Hertfordshire College (Stevenage) is funded through the British Council and MERSETA. The following areas
of collaboration were prioritised:
•
Utilising technology to enhance teaching and learning
•
Data Management System to improve Student Performance
•
Leadership and Management development
•
Establishing an entrepreneurial college culture
•
Customising the OFSTED monitoring and evaluation tools to improve the outcomes of teaching and
learning and the overall effectiveness of College Leadership and Management
•
Lecturer Development in Classroom Management and Assessment Practices
•
Staff and Student Exchange Programmes
On 4 February, the College was privileged to welcome the first member of the Senior Management team of
North Hertfordshire College, Chris McLean, in South Africa to address our Senior Management team, including
Campus Managers and section heads on Strategic leadership and realising the vision of an entrepreneurial
college where Expert Learners with 21st century entrepreneurial skills can be groomed.
In an effort to improve student performance and overall efficiency of the college, the college has decided to
benchmark its monitoring and evaluation strategy with that of the UK. It was for this reason that an OFSTED
inspector from the UK, April Carrol, was invited to share the OFSTED model, which is rated amongst the best
in the world, with Senior Managers from the college, Provincial officials and Senior Management members
from the 2 sister colleges in the Province. The Principals of the two UK Colleges visited Gert Sibande College
on 26 May 2014.
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Gert Sibande TVET College Management with Mr Chris McLean (Centre: seated)
from North Hertfordshire College.

The Principal from Highbury College in Portsmouth, Stella Mbubaegbu, shared with Senior Management
Staff Members of the college, the Highbury Way to become an outstanding College. The focus was very
much on Strategic Leadership and high levels of accountability at all levels to enhance the quality of learning
and teaching in the institution. Signe Sutherland, the Principal of North Hertfordshire College in Stevenage,
shared their College’s vision of establishing an Entrepreneurial College culture where students are assisted
by the college to establish Learning Companies where a platform is created for students to exercise actual
entrepreneurial and business skills. Through their STEM Centre they reach out to prospective and current
students to introduce them to the world of learning through advanced technologies and 3D Content Delivery
and creatively change the way in which learning takes place.
The visit from the two Principals was followed by the visits from UK Partners Jackie Page, Regional Director
for UK business, and Alison Winter, Head of Quality and Teaching & Learning. Sessions were delivered to
Campus management and Lecturing staff in Classroom Management, Assessment Practices, Planning an
outstanding lessons and the observation and grading of lessons. An exciting spin-off of the partnership
was when Mbalenhle Xaba and Innocent Luvuno , Gert Sibande College Students (Sibanesetfu campus),
visited the United Kingdom, North Hertfordshire College (NHC) in Stevenage, on 14 May to participate in an
Entrepreneurship programme as part of the student exchange programme. They were selected after they
were the best performing Level 4 students in Business Studies and Engineering Studies respectively in the
entire college. As the College is being placed amongst the top performing colleges in the country, the Deputy
Principal Academic shared the college’s recipe for success at the SACPO Academic Board Summit which took
place from 7 to 8 August 2014. The visibility and involvement of College Council and Senior Management
to provide direction support for identified challenges and vigorously monthly monitoring and evaluation of
progress on key priorities were some of the aspects which were highlighted. Monica Swart, Manager of Skills
Academy and Artisan Development Centre shared with the audience how Skills and Learnership Programmes
offered at the centre benefit the unemployed youth with low levels of schooling as well as communities.
The College realizes that the strength of the sector lies within the sector and therefore embraces the
close working relationship with sister colleges, Nkangala and Ehlanzeni TVET Colleges in the Province. The
Mpumalanga Curriculum committee consisting of College Principals as ex-officio members, Deputy Principals
Academic, Curriculum and Examination Managers from the 3 respective colleges, meet on a quarterly basis
to share best practices and focus on strengthening poor performing subjects through common planning and
training opportunities.
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SUCCESSFUL TVET ICT
CONFERENCE HOSTED BY
GERT SIBANDE COLLEGE
Engela Franken,
E-learning Manager

A successful TVET ICT conference was hosted by Gert Sibande College from 9-11
April 2014 at Graceland Casino in Secunda. Dignitaries who attended included
Mduduzi Manana, the Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training, who was also the key note speaker
at the gala dinner, college council member, Valerie Harmse, Aruna Singh and Trudi van Wyk from DHET, Jan
Mkhwanazi from MDOE and CEOs from colleges and ICT companies. More than 200 participants from all 9
provinces attended the conference.
The theme of the conference was “Enhancing the quality of teaching and learning through Technology.” The
speakers and exhibitors kept the audience enthralled throughout the event. Our UK partners from North
Hertfordshire College, represented by Chris McLeane added an international flair to the conference.

ICT STRATEGY MEETING WITH DEPUTY MINISTER OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND
TRAINING

Another highlight for the eLearning Unit is the meeting with Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training,
honorable Mduduzi Manana. eLearning Manager, Engela Franken was invited to his office to discuss a proposal
for the ICT strategy on which a model for a national roll-out could be based. The proposal was based on the
following four ICT PILLARS implemented at Gert Sibande College: Learning and Content Management System,
Academic and Student Support, Lecturer Development and Classroom Resources.
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E-SKILLS ONLINE COMPUTER COURSE
Gert Sibande College did a wonderful work with “Khuphula” (uplifting) which benefited the community by
training a selected group of 20 teachers on e-Skills basic computer course. The course was offered on Saturdays
over 72 hours and it consisted of 17 modules based on ICT related NQF Unit Standards credit bearing towards
the ‘End user Computing’ SAQA qualification. The course is accredited by MICT Seta and assessments are
done online after completion of every module.

2014 ENDS ON A HIGH NOTE AS GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE WINS INAUGURAL
DHET ICT AWARD

Mr Nick Balkrishen (CEO); Mrs Hester van Zyl (Deputy CEO Academic Affairs); Mr Mduduzi Manana (Deputy
Minister Higher Education and Training); Mrs Engela Franken (eLearning Manager); Mr Elias Mbuyane (Deputy
CEO Corporate Services)

“All the hard work paid off” said Engela Franken, eLearning Manager of GS College at a prestigious Gala
Dinner and Award Ceremony hosted by the Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training, at Gallagher
Estate, Midrand on Tuesday 28 November 2014, as part of their annual conference where Gert Sibande TVET
College has been announced as best TVET College in South Africa in the category ‘Excellence in Information
and Communication Technology Innovation’
In an outstanding presentation on the second day of the conference, she emphasized to the 600 exquisite
delegates of DHET and TVET college councils, how important it is for the TVET sector to work together in
driving the implementation and improvement of ICT in the TVET sector. She spoke about the four ICT pillars
established and managed by the eLearning Unit at GS College, namely
•
•
•
•

Learning and Content Management System “Khuphula”
Academic Student Support
Lecturer Development
Classroom Resources
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KHUPHULA GROWS FROM STRENGTH TO STRENGTH
The eLearning Unit maintain an effective Lecturer Support System - Khuphula for GSC Staff - where all
institutional, academic and support documents and resources are populated after being quality assured.
Maximum utilisation of this system is ensured by monitoring the upload and availability of new assessments
according to the academic assessment schedule.
For the students, the eLearning Unit maintain another portal - Khuphula for GSC Students - where all
students can access at least 5 years’ previous papers, marking guidelines and subject related resources.
Correspondence students can utilise this portal to receive and submit assignments and to discuss subject
matters with fellow students and lecturers on the chat room.

ACADEMIC SUPPORT
Enhancing teaching & learning with technology, is part of the eLearning Unit’s mission. Some of the
achievements in this field are:
a)
Internal delivery of training: With Khuphula being upgraded to the latest version of development, the
new ‘Lesson Builder’ tool was taught to 26 identified ‘champion’ lecturers in a two-day workshop at the
eLearning Unit, with Dr Verona Leendertz from NWU as facilitator.
b)
Academic support: LearnScapes is a computer based academic tuition programme focussing on
explaining concepts of the four Fundamental Subjects and Science. Learnscapes has been installed
in all fundamental classrooms and Student Support Centres. eBrary is an electronic library with more
than 200 thousand titles of books in electronic format, available to all staff and students, accessible
through Khuphula.
c)
Provision of technology-rich classroom resources and teaching aids: 40% of classrooms have been
equipped with interactive whiteboards. Hi-tech multifunctional software associated with these boards
are FreeClass, EaziTeach and Qwiztech. A demo set of a Visualiser has been circulated between lecturers
to determine the need or not, for the purchase of more of this highly efficient teaching aid.

WEBSITE
The college website www.gscollege.co.za is a self-editable site built on Wordpress. Maintenance is done 100%
by staff. All new vacancies, newsletters, special editions and other marketing material as well as requests for
quotations and related procurement documents are published on a weekly basis.

2014 STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES
FOOTPRINTS
Portia Masemola
Student Support
Manager

Student Support Services continues to be one of the most important sections in the
College with regards to student success. Student Support Services offers Academic
support, financial aid, student placement and Workplace Based Experience, student
wellness & healthy living programmes, sports, Student Representative Council and leadership development
across all Campuses of Gert Sibande TVET College.
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FINANCIAL AID (BURSARIES)
In 2014, Student Support Services (SSS) managed to award The Department of Higher Education and Training
bursaries to 4023 NCV students as compared to 3557 students in 2013. DHET NFSAS bursaries also assisted
2017 Report 191 (Nated) programme students. 100% of the allocation was claimed which amount to R52,
063,533.00 for NCV students and R6, 849,005.00 for Report 191 students. DHET increased the bursary
allocation of Gert Sibande College with an additional amount of R11, 000,000.00 to assist students with
outstanding class fees, travel and accommodation.
The College also managed to secure additional funding to assist other students who did not receive DHET
(NSFAS) Bursary from The Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sports Sector Education and Training
Authority (CATHSETA), Wholesale &Retail Sector Education and Training Authority (W&RSETA) and Insurance
Sector Education and Training Authority (INSETA). CATHSETA sponsored the College with an amount of R441
000 which assisted 9 students. INSETA bursary assisted 82 students with a total of R669, 662. W&RSETA
assisted 28 students with an amount of R450, 576.00. These sponsors assisted a total of 119 students. We
would like to to appreciate our sponsors for making it possible for our students to acquire education (INSEFA.
NSETA, CATSETA, DHET, INSET and W&RSETA).
1994 Level 2 students were awarded bursaries in 2014
988 passed 7 out of 7
282 passed 6 out of 7 subjects
1420 level 2 students progressed to the next level
150 passed 5 out of 7 subjects
which accounts for 71,21 % of L2’s
574 are supplemented and some are repeaters
1160 Level 3 students were awarded bursaries
538 passed 7 out of 7
227 passed 6 out of 7
140 passed 5 out 7 subjects
905 progressed to L4
255 L3 Bursary beneficiaries were due for supplementary exams or repeating the Level
869 Level 4 students received a bursary
480 passed 7 out of 7 subjects
159 passed 6 out of 7 subjects
55 % Level 4 bursary beneficiaries were certificated
105 passed 5 out of 7 subjects
during the November exams
Excluding the exams.
Of the 4023 learners who were awarded bursaries, 3200 progressed to next level (72%)
71, 21 % of the level 2 progressed
78 % of L3 progressed
49, 54 % of the L2 Bursary beneficiaries were
46, 37 % of the L3 Bursary beneficiaries were
certificated during the November exams
certificated during the November exams
55 % of the L4 Bursary beneficiaries were
49, 86 % of all the bursary beneficiaries passed 7/7
certificated during the November exams
subjects
73, 71 % of the level 2 & 3 bursary beneficiaries progressed to the next level.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL (SRC) / STUDENT ACTIVITIES
Successful Student Representative Council (SRC) elections took place across Campuses. Ten SRC members
were elected per site. The SRC induction took place in Obetyan Lodge in Middelburg. The EXCO elections also
took place during the SRC Induction and 12 members were elected to represent the students at the College
level.
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Gert Sibande TVET College SRC Executive Committee

Name and Surname
Mr Nkululeko Mahlangu

Office Portfolio
Exco President

Mr Bongani Benedict Mathibela

Deputy President

Mr Buhle Gift Dlamini
Mr Aaron Skariot Nhlapo
Ms Zama Mdlalose

General Secretary
Deputy General Secretary
Treasurer

Mr Thami Maseko

Director Public Relations

Ms Nonkululeko Penelope Buthelezi
Ms Cynthia Nomalala
Mazibuko

Director Academic Affairs
Director Religious and
Cultural Affairs
Director of Sport and
Recreation, Arts and Culture
Director of Community
Outreach and Social Affairs
ADDITIONAL MEMBERS

Mr Muzi Thwala
Ms Thembelihle Innocent Nkutha
Ms Lindiwe Magazi

Additional Member

Ms Nompumelelo Mokoena

Additional Member

Field of study & Campus
Marketing L4 - Ermelo Campus
Electrical Infrastructure &
constuction - Evander Campus
Hospitality L4 - Standerton Campus
Civil L2 - Balfour Campus
Marketing - Subanesetfu Campus
Marketing L4 - Ermelo Campus
Marketing L4 - Standerton Campus
Civil L2 - Balfour Campus
F, W&A L4 - Ermelo Campus
Marketing - Ermelo Campus
Office Administration
Evander Campus
Office Administration
Balfour Campus

The students participated successfully in local, provincial and National athletics where our student’s performed
very well. SSS hosted a successful Sports Day and celebrated Valentine’s Day with a fun filled Day of activities.
Academic Day was also held, which is an annual event where students take part in educational activities that
are aimed at educating and revealing their skills and talents. Activities such as Maths Olympiad, Science and
Innovation, be the chef, speech contest, poetry, the best typist and art were the order of the day.
The College also celebrated a heritage month and hosted a ground breaking choir competition. All campuses
participated in the music competition and we hoped to participate on provincial and national platforms in
2015. Other Activities that were organised by the SSS in 2014 included, Spring Day, Youth Day, Woman’s Day
and Mandela Day celebrations.

HEALTH AND WELLNESS
Aids Wise conducted HIV/AIDS awareness campaign in Ermelo. The Department of Health trained SRC and
peer educators about HIV & AIDS related matters. Peer educators were also trained at Obetyan by “Footballer’s
for Life” about the importance of healthy living, MMC, ZAZI, HIV & AIDS and Counselling.
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SSS also launched the IZAZI, Medical Male Circumcision (MMC) and “First thing First” Campaign in partnership
with the Higher Education and Training HIV/AIDS Programme (HEAIDS) and the Department of Health. The
College also celebrated the graduation ceremony of Report 191 and NCV students.

3129 Students placed in the
workplace with success in
2014
Mr Sihle Nzuza,
Acting Job Placement
Manager

2014 was flagged as a year of success for the Office of Career Guidance and
Job Placement. This was achieved by meeting all targets sets for Job Placement
categories. Job Placement Office improved as compared to its inception in 2011.
The Offices capacitated training programmes for exiting students with career
guidance. “The support we received from external stakeholders including, SETA’s, Public and Private sector,
made it possible for the office to meet targets because the Office cannot survive without their support to
contribute in growing the number of graduates to access workplace opportunities,” Mr Sihle Nzunza, Acting
Job Placement Manager, said. The Student Support Services Centres in all campuses made it easy for students
to access the Job Placement Office and get support that they needed. We have seen a push from the Minister
of Higher Education and Training Dr B.E Nzimande, where SETA’s are mandated to work with institutions of
learning in addressing the shortages of skills in the workplace. A number of SETA’s are in partnership with
the College and these partnerships have benefited graduates to access employment opportunities. These
partnerships also signal an understanding that a unified response to joblessness and poverty remains a critical
element in responding to both national and regional socio-economic agendas. This Office sets out its intent
to plan and work together with SETA’s, Public and Private Sector on areas of mutual interest in advancing the
impact and provision of quality skills development and delivery in contributing to economic growth and job
creation.
ASPECT

Implementation
date
Quarterly
Ongoing

TARGET

ACTUAL

1600
400

2643
486

10 000

11 219

Academic Support

Academic support
period (Academic
day, Peer tutor,
extra classes etc)

3600

3100

HIV Testing
MMC
ZAZI

quarterly

800

982

Placement test

September 2013 January 2015

5 000

9 820

SRC Elections

3 February 2014

Valentine’s day

14 February

Spring day

5 September

SRC Lekgotla

2 - 4 December

Placements (WBE)
Internships
Career guidance &
counselling
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Ongoing

Remarks

63 Positive
56 female positive
7 males positive

10 EXCO Members. Free and fair
10 per campus 10 per campus elections took place under the
observation of the IEC.
Healthy living was the theme and HCT
4000
4200
took place on site.
The college celebrated Heritage month
and a choir competition on this day
All students
and it was a huge success at Evander
Campus.
Review of the SRC Constitution and
50 SRC
2015 planning, inputs into 2015 SRC
elections processes

ACADEMIC SUPPORT AND PLACEMENT

Under Academic Support, SSS has put measures in place to assist struggling students by implementing a
Peer- tutoring programme. Best performing students are selected to assist students at risk and are trained as
tutors. Peer-tutors work closely with subject lectures and Student Liaison Officer’s (SLO’S).
The academic support period encouraged students to use Learnscapes to assist them to improve on Maths/
Maths Literacy, English and Life orientation. SSS in partnership with the E-learning Unit registered students on
khuphula and assisted them to download question papers and Memo’s.
Career Guidance and Counselling has been offered to career guidance seekers in the following categories:
Campus Level (Walk-in’s)

Surrounding Schools

Community & Churches etc.

CAREER GUIDANCE AND JOB PLACEMENT UNIT ACTIVITIES
Entrepreneurship Skills Workshop:
Entrepreneurship Skills Workshop was offered by National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) across
Campuses from 26 – 29 May 2014. The number of exiting students per Campus that attended was as follows:
Sibanisetfu Campus – 56

Ermelo Campus – 97

Standerton Campus – 218

The Workshop was intended for students who wish to venture into business.
Job Preparedness Skills Workshop:
A Job Preparedness Skills Workshops took place from 18 – 21 August, 2014 across Campuses. The Workshops
was facilitated by NYDA office from Secunda. The number of exiting students per Campus that attended was
as follows:
Evander Campus – 112
Standerton Campus – 80

Sibanesetfu Campus – 149
Ermelo Campus - 117

FUTURE AMBITIONS FOR THE CURRICULUM, E-LEARNING AND STUDENT
SUPPORT UNITS
The College will fully utilise the state of the art Student Support Centres in 2015 that have been launched
on 28 August 2014 at Sibanesetfu campus by Dr Mahlobo (acting DDG) from DHET. The Centres have been
developed at each campus to offer academic and career guidance support through specialized software
programmes and E-Learning Resources in computer labs. The Student Support Centres house study halls and
offices for financial support in the form of bursaries as well as Health and Social support which students as
well as members of the communities can access.
The Khuphula Web-based Learner Management portal will be expanded as from next year, to provide students
with a wider variety of online resources to improve academic results.
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The management of the college is very aware of the fact that it cannot function in isolation and will therefore
continue to seek new and build on existing partnerships with Business and Industry, SETAS, Provincial and
Local Government , Schools offering Basic Education, Local and International Higher Education Training
institutions. These partnerships will mainly focus on:
•
The Placement of Students and Lecturers for Workplace Based Experience and Work Integrated
Learning
•
Accessing funding for Bursaries, Internships and Learnerships
•
Enrolling students with Special Needs
•
Ensuring that programmes are responsive and relevant
•
Ensuring that the quality of programmes offered meet the expectation of employers
•
Establishing a Centre for Entrepreneurship Develop in partnership with Department of Small
Business Development to develop entrepreneurial skills and incubation hubs
•
Articulation into Higher Education Institutions and offering Higher Certificates (Level 5) in partnership
with UNISA and TUT
•
International Exchange programmes for lecturers and students, sharing of best practices and
developing highly efficient monitoring and evaluation tools to enhance learning and teaching which
will include the Second Phase of the UK Partnership: Bringing the Learning Home
•
Introducing more on-line programmes and a data warehouse in order to enhance teaching and
learning and to monitor amongst others absenteeism
•
Cascading accountability to the lowest level with students setting individual targets for academic
performance

CONCLUSION
All the wonderful milestones for Curriculum, E-Learning and Student Support Services in 2014 would not
have been accomplished without the tremendous support of the College Council, Principal and Executive
Management members, Senior and Campus Management teams, Lecturers, Support staff, SRC members and
Students. We are looking forward to the 2015 Academic year.

											
30 June 2015
Signature
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SECTION FOUR

MESSAGE FROM CORPORATE SERVICE
DIRECTORATE

CORPORATE
SERVICES REPORT
Mr Elias Mbuyane,
Deputy CEO; Coporate
Services

I am thrilled to share with you the achievements of 2014 in a variety of fronts
that defines Gert Sibande TVET College. I am equally tempted to attribute the
successes witnessed in 2014 to the working culture that exists in the College. The
prevailing culture at the College is one where high expectations and aspirations are normal. It is a culture of
not accepting second best. The College governance structures, leadership, management and lecturing staff
are outstanding; hence it is not surprising that they are producing outstanding students. All key role players
embrace the reality that in unison they travelled the 2014 road from ‘good to great’ and would continue in
that vein in 2015 and beyond. The staff at Gert Sibande TVET College know, believe and understand that
curriculum delivery is their core business.
The year twenty fourteen (2014) tested the internal College community in a number of ways, but I am proud to
report that the community remained steadfast in their resolve of ensuring that the core business of teaching
and learning remained unscathed. Our Corporate Services stood the test of times. In Human Resources (HR),
the preparations for migration dominated all other agendas and all the efforts paid off.
Marketing and Communication continued to ensure the Marketing Mix of the College got sharpened and
that manifested in the increased number of potential students that turned up for the placement tests during
the 2015 students’ registration periods. A total of 10 562 potential students set for the placement test for
a maximum target of 5 156 NCV enrolments. In the wake of the envisaged migration, rebranding college
material became a must and was complied with. The urge to widen communication with the outside world
increased exponentially and that was evident through the increased ‘like’ pages on social media platforms
and the intensified relationship with local religious pastors as well as key community stakeholders.
Information Technology enhancement received momentum in 2014, leading to connectivity issues given
particular attention hence sufficient budget placed for actual implementation in 2015. The standardisation
of computer laboratories by installing domain systems and setting up of own Local Area Network (LAN) took
centre stage.
The table below outlines the strategic targets that the College set itself in 2013 for 2014 and the achievement
per strategic area.
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2014/2015 Achievements
Performance Report
Theme
Key areas
Strategic objectives
Key performance indicator
Student attendance rate
Lecurer attendance rate
Assessment retention rate in
NC(V)
Assessment retention rate in
Report 191
Assessment retention rate in
occupational programmess
Monitoring
To achive the targets Assessment retention rate in
other programmes
insttitutional for success rates as
Teaching and
performance set out in the College Monitoring of assessment
Learning
and
operational plans and Subject repeaters Report 191
achievements delivery Agreement II Certificattion rate for NC(V)
students
Certificate rate for Report 191
Certification rate for bursary
recipient
Pass reate for math’s and
math’s literacy
Pass rate for occupational
programmes
Buying or
To buy or
building of new build new
classrooms,
workshops.
Number of teaching and support room constructed
laboratories,
To upgrade
offices, etc.
workshops to
Upgrading,
improve skills
alteration,
development.
refurbishment To ensure
and
maintenance
modernizing
of standards
of classtooms,
Number of teaching and support rooms upgraded
laboratories
and workshops.
Maintenance of
standards.

Target
80%
95%

Actual
83%
95%

90%

83%

80%

81%

-

-

-

-

100%

10%

62%

55%

50%

47%

-

59%

67%

77%

-

-

14

20

3

4
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2012/2013 Performance Report
Performance Report
Theme
Key areas
Strategic objectives
Key performance indicator
Programme/ To expand the range Number of programmes and
Qualification of programmes and
qualifications
Mix
qualifications available
to meet local skill
demand
Expanding
To achieve the targets Number of FET’s enroled in
Access
for expansion as set
NC(V)
out in the College
Number of headcounts enrolled
operation plans and
in NC(V)
Delivery Agreement II Number of FET’s enrolled in
report 191
Number of headcounts enrolled
Access
in 191
Number of students enrolled
in occupational and other
programmes
Number of students granted
Assistance
To ascertain the
through
number of students
bursaries for tuition only
bursaries
assisted through
Bursaries
Number of students granted
Assistance
To ascertain the
comprehensive bursaries, i.e.
through
number of students
tuition plus transport and/or
bursaries
assisted through
accommodation
bursaries
Monitor
To achieve the targets Number of students placed in
insitutional
for success rates as
the work place for experiential
Employability performance set out in the College training (post qualification, for
and
operational plans and example: Internships)
achievements delivery Agreement II
Monitor
To achieve the targets Number of students placed in
institutional
for success rates
the work place for workplace
perormance
as set out in the
exposure (during qualification)
Employability
and
College operational
Number of partnerships,
achievement polans and delivery
linkages and relationships
Agreement II
Self-employment opportunities

Theme
Human
Resources
Development
(HRD)

Financial
Management
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2014 Performance Report
Performance Report
Key areas
Key performance indicator
to provide development Improve management skills
and training
Improve subject knowledge
opportunities for College Improve classroom practice
staff to imporve quality Improve lecturere access to workshop
of teaching and learning Increase number of lecturers with teaching
qualification
Support staff capacity building
To manage the College
budget appropriately
% HRD budget spending as per 1% of
to ensure sustainable
programme funding
operation

Page

Target

Actual

15

15

4914

4981

4914

4981

1536

1974

4000

4290

882

-

1080

1229

3800

4023

320

486

1600

2643

50

58

360

371

Target
3
231
216
24

Actual
3
252
252
31

63

63

185

187

1%

1%

EQUITY REPORT 2014
The promotion of equal opportunities and fair treatment is amongst the key values considered by the College
when dealing with the recruitment and selection processes. The College’s employment equity tool drives the
sustained transformation agenda at the College. Affirmative action measures implemented at the College
are able to identify and eliminate employment barriers with a view to ensure equity. In 2014 the College
registered with the Department of Labour and established an Equity Forum charged with the responsibility
to continue the oversight of the implementation of the equity plan. Below are tables that reflect the race and
gender representation of the 2014 College workforce.
Executive Management representation
STAFF BREAKDOWN
Executive Management
Middle Management
Lecturers/Support staff/other
Interns
TOTAL

African
M
F
1
0
17
15
162
171
28
39
180
186

Coloured
M
F
0
0
0
0
4
7
0
1
4
7

Indian
M
F
1
0
2
2
0
1
0
0
3
3

White
M
F
0
2
7
10
11
23
0
1
18
35

Total
M
2
26
177
28
205

F
2
27
202
43
231

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING REPORT 2014
The year 2014 saw a number of staff getting their skills sharpened in a number of areas, below is a summary
of the skills training intervention areas and the actual number of staff subjected to the training per area.
These training interventions are over and above the professional development provisions funded through
College and NSF bursaries.
HR Related Training
Leave and Absence Management
Labour Relations
Employment Equity
PMDS
Work Plan Management and Training
Vulindlela Training
Subject Specifics Training
English
Mathematics
Life Orientation
Primary Health
Community Oriented Primary Care
Generic Training
Business Reporting Skills
Assessor
Take Charge of Your Career
Minute Taking
Groundsmen and Cleaners Workshops
TOTAL

Target
20
15
20
35
23
3
8
7
8
2
2
50
15
165
26
80

Page

Quantity
16
12
19
33
18
3
Quantity
5
7
6
2
2
Quantity
47
12
163
26
79
450
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A COMMENDABLE YEAR
FOR MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION
Ms Jabulile Mhlabane,
Assistant Director:
Communications

Gert Sibande TVET College, Marketing and Communication department had a
splendid year. Henry F. Nel once said “Success comes as results of dedication,
commitment and hard work. “Almost everything comes from nothing.” The secret
to a rich life is to have more beginnings than endings.
The Marketing Department spread its wings in 2014 to make sure that the College brand name is flagged high.
For the 2014 academic year, we managed to improve our working relationships and partnership with schools,
municipalities, youth desks, media houses and circuit managers in the region.
In 2014, we exceeded the target of twelve road shows (12) a year to 121 roadshows. We also conducted 10
career exhibitions that were organised by public and private stakeholders to ensure stakeholder engagement.
Marketing Strategy
Target
Actual achievement
Articles in local press
24
33
Career exhibitions
depends on results
10
Roadshows
12
20
College Newsletters
4
4
Annual Report
1
1
Church Visits
6
10
		
The marketing team offered extensive career guidance in the region, a total of 164 schools were visited twice
a year. One of the Communications Department key goals is to assist local municipalities to reach out to
unemployed youths. The Department conducted 20 community meetings that were aimed at addressing the
skills shortages in the country and to fulfil our key goal.
The Marketing section is working tirelessly to ensure that the College becomes a preferred institution of
choice for the youth within the Gert Sibande Region: The section organised donations for Primary School
children from poor homes. The programme was dubbed “Dress a Child to School” and the College donated
school Uniform to more than 150 pupils. Isifisosethu, uLwazi and Grootdraai Dam Primary Schools benefited
from this project.
In August 2014, the section mobilised prospective students and the community by loud hailing and house
to house visits to promote the TVET Month. The TVET Month was pronounced by the Deputy Minister of
Higher Education and Training, Mduduzi Manana, after the Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr
Blade Nzimande declared 2014 – 2025 as the decade of the Artisan. During the TVET Month, Colleges are
expected to open their doors to the public and showcase all the courses offered at the Colleges. Gert Sibande
TVET College marketing team conducted roadshows, community meeting and adverts were placed in Local
and Regional newspapers to create awareness of the TVET month and to encourage students to take up
artisanship as a career. T-shirts and flyers were distributed to the community with a message “Discover the
artisan in you”. The College Campuses opened their doors to High School learners to see all the exciting
activities that took place at the College.
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Gert Sibande Tvet College Officials With Learners From Various Primary Schools During Mandela Day Celebrations

The section also had 4 live recorded Radio adverts in 4 National Radio Stations, Ligwagwala FM, Ukhozi
FM, Jacaranda FM and Ikwekwezi FM. The section also successfully produced 4 quarterly newsletters and
produced 3 special editions, ICT Conference, First Thing First and Mandela Day special editions. We also
printed (5000) flyers and (30) posters for registration and placement tests. The section also produced a world
class Annual Report.
We had numerous media coverage through local, provincial and national newspapers. In total we sent over
20 media statements and a total of 29 were published. We thank all media houses that assisted the college
to flag all success stories. The section managed to save the college money by negotiating free radio slots
to communicate with the community around the Gert Sibande Region. We also conducted 6 (six) radio talk
shows on national radio stations, Ligwagwala FM, Ukhozi FM and Ikwekwezi FM.

Gert Sibande TVET College Live on Radio
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A total of 11 college stories were featured in College Times. According to statistics, South Africans spend a
total of 85% on social networks. The College used social networks (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Youtube)
to post information about bursaries and academic related matters. The Facebook page proved to be the most
successful medium in communicating with our target market. The page has 2 167 likes and they growing
every week with a reach of more than 500 people a day. Thanks to all the people who supported the College
Facebook page.
Branding is one of the most important aspects of the section to ensure brand awareness. The more you buy,
the more you gain. We purchased 10 300 college branded plastic pens, 7000 folders, 2000 Paper bags, 3 000
Round neck T-shirts. 20 Camp chairs, 7 brochure stands, 4 Table cloths, 7 podium banners and 30 X shaped
banners.
Vince Lombardi once said “Perfection is not attainable, but if we chase perfection we can catch excellence”. We
would like to wish all our stakeholders happy and prosperous 2015. The year, 2014 was filled with challenges
yet we managed to meet all of our objectives.
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2014 HR
ACHIEVEMENTS
Ms Nomsa Ngwenya,
HR Manager

CONDUCTING THE MIE BACKGROUND SCREENING FOR
STAFF

The section is proud to state that it managed to register with Managed Integrity Evaluation (MIE) (PTY) LTD
whereby all our staff will be screened on: Residential status, qualifications, previous work employment etc.

AUDITING OF FILES FOR MIGRATION
This project was handled successfully by the Human Resources (HR) team whereby they checked each staff
file whether it contains employment contract/appointment letter, certified copies of ID, qualifications, valid
SACE certificates, work permits and job descriptions. This project had to be handled parallel with the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) staff updates information. HR took time to visit all sites
to assist individual employees with document completion and supporting documents. We would like to acknowledge the support of Mr Elias Mbuyane, Acting Deputy CEO – Corporate services; he gave to the team
and for understanding individual’s needs. Handling migration workshops would have been more difficult
were it not for the guidance and support he provided during the whole process.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM
The Human Resource unit is responsible for the overall coordination, support and monitoring of the implementation by line managers. The specific responsibilities varies from coordinating, providing strategic, logistical and capacity support to line managers in the implementation of the system, managing the links between
Performance Management Development Systems (PMDS) and other appropriate HR policies and to facilitate
the implementation of performance decisions in the College.
All employees managed to sign job descriptions and performance agreements for 2014/15 cycle. Besides
performance evaluation, quarterly meetings were conducted to identify performance areas which have been
identified as poor. As a result, Office Managers were inducted on planning and reporting tools which they
submitted to HR on weekly basis and grounds men and cleaners were trained on gardening maintenance and
cleaners catering and cleaning.
Quarterly meetings opened more communication and provided constructive feedback between managers
and performers, prepared clear performance measures that ensured fair and objective assessment of performers. It also provided guidance by encouraging performers to focus on clear, specific and attainable career
goals.

FORMATION OF HRD (HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT UNIT)
The abovementioned sub-division was formed in January 2014, which will look at the developing and
coordinating the implementation of policies and procedures for the college. It identified training needs
requirements and developed training plans. Arrange for and coordinates the development and delivery of
training programs for all staff. It manages the staff participation in special training programs sponsored by
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other organizations. It established and maintained communication with officials in other State agencies and
outside organizations to keep abreast of training and employee development programs.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GOOD PERFORMANCE AND SUPPORT
I would like to congratulate Mr Tebogo Motloung, for being innovative in the HRD sub division during the short
space of time he was promoted to Assistant Director: HRD. Mr Jan Manana who was promoted to Senior HR
Practitioner for the way he drove himself in ensuring that exiting staff members receive their pension payouts
in time and the rest of HR team for the manner in which they executed their duties without being reminded.
The support given by various organized labor unions and other colleagues to ensure that HR achieved all the
goals we were mandated for, will not go unnoticed.

FUTURE PLANS FOR 2015
Strengthen the relationship with DHET to ensure smooth operations.
Continue with background screening of staff through MIE and saving of documents electronically. To train
equity forum to be effective and to enable them to implement Employment Equity Act efficiently. The section
also wants to train lecturers without teaching qualification.

IT DEPARTMENT
CONTINUES TO INNOVATE
Sizwe Hlongwane
IT Officer

2014 was yet another successful and exciting year for the Information Technology
(IT) department at the College. The section came up with new innovations which
would have a magnificent impact for the entire College.

Implementation of networking for student support center at sibaneseftu campus.
Installation of new computers in Sibaneseftu campus in Student Support labs and
techno-center for public use.
Installed and implemented the domain system for balfour campus and skills academy
and artisan development centre.
Installation of ITAC software for teaching and learning for balfour, Standerton campus
and skills academy.

Target
4

Actual
4

100

98

2

2

3

2

FUTURE PLANS FOR THE IT DEPARTMENT
The section is in the process of linking all Gert Sibande TVET College Campuses; the section has put
expectations such as having high bandwidth speeds running at 60Mbps per site. This will allow the college to
host and utilize application such as Microsoft office 365, which is a cloud based and have SharePoint services
for students and lectures. The section wants all staff members and students to have stable internet access,
and this can only be achieved by implementing high speed connectivity. With high speed bandwidth, the
section will also introduce Google applications for students and lecturing staff as to assist with teaching and
learning. Goals for the section is to ensure that Gert Sibande TVET College is the leading brand in technology
within Africa.
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This will be achieved by the positive members who are always going the extra mile to ensure that IT matters
are prioritized.
In conclusion, the section would also like to thank different service providers who worked tirelessly twith the
IT team to ensure that the desired IT results are achieved.

SKILLS ACADEMY AND ARTISAN
DEVELOPMENT CENTRE, SUCCESSFUL
YEAR
Monica Swart,
Skills Academy
Manager

Skills Academy and Artisan Development Centre has grown during 2014 with 14%
and boasts 989 learners. Included in this number of learners we have 84 learners
doing an apprenticeship showing the importance the College places on the Decade
of the Artisan. The Electrical Trade Test Centre also started with official trade testing of electricians, bringing
this service nearer to the rural communities of Gert Sibande Region.
Staff Members
Most of the staff members of the Centre are appointed from project funding received from various sources,
for example funding received from Seta’s (Sector Education and Training Authorities) and the National Skills
Fund. The number of contract employees were approximately 60 during 2014. The positions vary from
project managers to facilitators, including a number of employees necessary to deliver quality programmes
to the community.
During 2014 the core of permanently appointed staff members was joined by a State Accountant, Mr
Thokozani Hlatswayo, who has done an excellent job since his appointment to help with the management of
the finances of the Centre.
Learners and number of Learning Programmes
Programmes at the Centre vary from soft skills to technical skills. The number of learners and the programmes
for 2014 are reflected below.
Learning Progammes:
Level 1 – 4
NC: Mixed Farming
NC: Community House Building
NC: Electrical Engineering
NC: Welding Practice
NC: Information Technology: End user computing
NC: Building and Civil Construction
FETC: New Venture Creation
FETC: Plumbing
FETC: Child and Youth Care Worker
FETC: Early Childhood Development

NQF Level

Number of
Learners

1
2
2
2
3
3
4
4
4
4

10
144
13
24
132
30
30
29
50
194
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Level 5
HC: Early Childhood Development
NC: Early Childhood Development
Other/Skills programmes
Auxilliary Nursing
Plumbing Skills
Farming Skills
Apprenticeships
Electrical Apprenticeship
Welding Apprenticeship
Electrical Apprenticeship (NCV Level 4)
Civil Apprenticeship
Total number of learners

5
5

100
114

N/A
N/A
N/A

8
12
15

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

11
5
29
39
989

Funding
Funding was sourced from the following entities during 2014:
National Department of Public Works, Mpumalanga Department of Education, Roads and Transport
(Expanded Plublic Work Programme), National Skills Fund, Agriculture Seta (AgriSeta), Electrical and Water
Seta (EWSeta), Construction Seta (CETA), Health and Welfare Seta (HWSeta) and Transport Seta (TETA).
Infrastructure
A simulation shop and storeroom, funded by Wholesale and Retail Seta (W&RSeta), was launched during
2014. This storeroom will also be utilised by the NCV programmes.
A fitting training workshop was completed during 2014. This state-of-the-art workshop will be used for the
training of fitting learnerships, fitting artisans and skills programmes as needed.
Partnerships
A partnership was formed with SASOL Synfuels to do training for 30 fitting and electrical learners on community
programme.
Chemical Engineering Seta (Chieta), Flavius Mareka TVET College and Gert Sibande TVET College also formed a
partnership to train 110 learners on chemical operations and 40 learners on an electromehanical programme
during 2015.
BankSeta and AATSA formed a partnership with the Centre to obtain accreditation for AATSA programmes
during 2014.
Accreditation
Accreditation was obtained from W&RSeta and AATSA for new programmes.
Planned activities for 2015
The Centre is planning on completing a Boilermaking- and a Motor Mechanic workshop during 2015. The
Centre will also build a plant operation workshop at Campus B in Evander for the 110 learners that form part
of the partnership with Chieta.
The planned number of learners for 2015 is 1100.
30 June 2015
Signature
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SECTION FIVE

FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER’S REVIEW
Ibrahim Khan,
Acting Head of
Finance

PERFORMANCE IN THE 2014 FINANCIAL YEAR

The 2014 Financial year for Gert Sibande TVET College was one of the most
challenging years to date. Matters arose within the college which had a direct implication on the finances and
financial management of the college. Notwithstanding this, the Financial Management of the College had to
further strengthen its already strict controls and risk measures. Amidst the challenges, the management of
the College has implemented cost curtailment measures in totality, operational efficiencies were restructured
and a more stringent process of policy implementation was adopted. The College has continued to build on
its zero tolerance towards fraud and corruption.

INFLUENCING FACTORS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Measures against the strategic goals and operational plans for the specific year are indicators of the
performance of the College. These operational and strategic plans are compiled in conformance with goals and
objectives as outlined by the Department of Education and linked to the funding framework for the specific
year. Satisfactory performance was reported from all departments across the college and Gert Sibande TVET
College managed to align all strategic and operational planned activities successfully.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The College ended the academic year in a position of surplus revenue. The total revenue for the College for
the year was R272 million, of which the main composition comprised of government approved funding to
the value of R140 million and a Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) bursary allocation of
R59 million. The Government grand funding is based on the total number of student enrolments of the
College. Funding was carried out in accordance with the ability of the College to effectively attract and
retain students in line with the Department of Higher Education and Training’s defined targets. Skills training
offered through the Artisan Development Centre accounted for additional revenue to the College.
The total expenditure of R213 million for the academic year was well controlled and regulated within available
funds and budgets taking cost curtailment measures into account.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CASHFLOW
Generated cash flow from operations amounted to R 60 million being compared to R48 million in 2013. This
provides a clear indication of the financial health of the College, further indicating that the College would be
able to continue with its required and planned activities in the following financial year.
The College has invested in a number of capital projects entailing upgrading as well as replacement to
equipment and facilities. During the 2014 financial year, a total amount of R35.1 million was invested by the
College for capital projects which encompasses the following: R20.5 million on buildings and infrastructure,
R4.5 million on IT and computer equipment, R2.8 million on furniture and equipment, R4.9 million on
workshop tools and equipment and R2.4 million on vehicles.
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COMMUNITY RELATED PROJECTS
Various community projects within the Gert Sibande Region and further extending to others were embarked
by the College. The College aims to continually build healthy relationships within communities by promoting
the principles of Ubuntu and striving to create and maintain caring for communities.

INFRASTRUCTURE SPENDING
During the 2014 financial year, a total of 29.5% of the College budget was spent on infrastructure. This was
used to establish:
•
30 Classrooms
•
15 Offices
•
18 Toilets
•
Administration Block
•
2 Workshops

OUTLOOK ON 2015
Gert Sibande TVET College will strive to continually improve and strengthen its financial related management
processes to successfully achieve the set objectives from the Department of Higher Education and Training in
their vision to transform the TVET sector to be a sector of choice for tertiary education.
As per the directive received in 2013 from (DHET), the College has been in process of implementing the newly
developed accounting framework of General Recognised Accounting Framework (GRAP). The implementation
of this new framework was undertaken by the College in collaboration through a support programme initiated
between South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) and DHET.
New policies pertaining to finance and financial activities as received from DHET have been adopted by the
college and implemented at all levels. This is an effort to further increase efficiency and strengthen controls
within the financial department of the College as well as to ensure total compliance with all governmental
regulations and legislation.
Although there were many challenges experienced during the financial year, the financial personnel of the
College have continued to show commitment and integrity. Strategies and objectives of the College were
supported fully by the financial department. The financial department has strengthened its process control
even further amidst challenging times and continue to serve the College with excellence.
FINANCIAL ASPECT
Totla Income
Total Expenses
Total Capital Projects

TARGET
R 218 662 819.00
R 178 361 492.00
R 54 900 000.00

ACTUAL
R 220 825 128.00
R 178 787 997.00
R 35 165 673.00

30 June 2015
Signature

DATE
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SECTION SIX

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the Year ended 31 December 2014
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GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
GENERAL INFORMATION

Controlling entity

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

Annual Financial Statements relate to

GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE (Individual entity and not group)

Domicile, legal form and jurisdiction

The college is a Public Technical and Vocational Education and Training
College, constituted in terms of the Continuing Education and Training
Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended, and operates within the Republic of
South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities

To provide continuing education and training to registered students for
all learning and training programmes leading to qualifications or part
qualifications at levels 1 to 4 of the National Qualifications Framework

Councillors

1. Mr P Magagula [Chairperson] - Independent
2. Ms D Thwala - Independent
3. Mr L Tshabalala - Independent
4. Mr M Purchase - Independent
5. Mr M Luthuli - Independent
6. Dr A Beeka - Independent
7. Ms FB Mtshali - Independent
8. Mrs V Haramse - Independent
9. Mr P Balkrishen - College appointed
10. Mrs H Van Zyl - College appointed

Principal

Mr P Balkrishen

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Ebrahim Khan (Acting Head of Finance)

Registered office

18A Bayers Naude Drive, Standerton, Mpumalanga

Business address

18A Bayers Naude Drive, Standerton, Mpumalanga

Postal address

P O Box 3475, Standerton, Mpumalanga

Bankers

Standard Bank, ABSA

Auditors

VDM Auditors
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GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
Council's Responsibilities and Approval
The council is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended, to maintain adequate accounting records and is
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of
council to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the college as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with GRAP. The external auditors were engaged to express an independent opinion
on the financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records, related data and relevant parties.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GRAP including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the ASB and in
the manner required by the Minister of Higher Education and Training.
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
Council acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the college and places considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control environment, which includes the safeguarding of assets and compliance with relevant legislation. To enable
the council to meet these responsibilities, the council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing risk in a cost effective manner. The standards
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting and other procedures, and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the college and employees and management are
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the college's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is
above reproach. The focus of risk management in the college is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
college. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the college endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The council accepts its responsibility to ensure that the college is managed in a responsible manner, considering the interest of all stakeholders,
including the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities, credit providers and SARS. Responsible management entails, inter alia,
compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, including risk management.
The council is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements and that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The council has reviewed the college’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2015 and, in the light of this review and the current financial
position, it is satisfied that the college has, or has access to, adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The college is dependent on the DHET for continued funding of operations in line with the annual DHET programme funding allocation. The financial
statements are prepared on the basis that the college is a going concern and that the DHET has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail
materially the scale of the college's operations.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the college's financial statements. The financial statements have been
examined by the college's external auditors and their report is presented with these financial statements.
The financial statements set out on page XX to XX, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the council on

05.06.2015
………………………...and were signed on its behalf by:

________________________
Initials & Surname
Chairperson of the Council

Page 3

Page

57

GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
Auditor's Report
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GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014

_______________________________________________________________________________
2014
2013
Note

R

R

ASSETS
Current assets

141,064,654

130,032,990

Cash and cash equivalents

3

96,082,436

85,118,663

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

4

39,359,157

39,447,125

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers

5

3,052,992

3,472,554

Other financial assets

6

1,674,595

1,555,847

Inventories

7

895,474

438,802

141,651,116

145,618,153

141,651,116

145,618,153

282,715,770

275,651,143

15,752,327

7,128,978

15,752,327

6,508,375

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

8

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

9

Provisions

11

Total liabilities

15,752,327

620,603
7,128,978

Net assets

266,963,444

268,522,164

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

266,963,444

268,522,164

Total net assets and liabilities

282,715,771

275,651,143
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GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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_______________________________________________________________________________________
2014
2013
Note
R
R
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions

89,936,205

72,971,726

Tuition fees

12

49,388,322

41,195,777

Sale of goods & rendering of services

13

35,358,652

27,169,964

Rental of facilities and equipment

14

1,177,345

1,293,895

Investment income

15

3,871,141

3,175,580

Other income

16

140,744

136,510

210,779,754

193,532,114

Government grants and subsidies

17

140,472,000

140,738,839

Public contributions and donations

18

7,000

1,033,560

Other income

16

70,300,754

51,759,714

300,715,958

266,503,840

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Total revenue
Expenses
Employee related costs and DHET management fee

19

-110,042,499

-94,379,273

Debt impairment

20

-12,643,684

-10,336,202

Depreciation and amortisation

21

-10,639,489

-7,119,494

Repairs and maintenance

22

-7,950,253

-5,161,234

Contracted services

23

-6,196,963

-4,557,598

Grants and subsidies paid

24

-61,035,617

-51,746,148

Travel, accommodation and entertainment

-2,716,723

-2,303,615

Books and learning materials

-5,539,097

-5,360,445

Printing and stationery

-1,179,528

-1,898,073

Telephone, postage, internet, network and communication costs

-4,226,859

-3,973,038

Marketing

-1,742,608

-1,829,161

Municipal services

-4,303,497

-5,505,848

Security

-2,889,005

-2,432,744

-32,513,288

-28,593,663

-263,619,111

-225,196,535

General expenses

25

Total expenses
Other gains/losses
Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss on assets

25

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period

Page

-

-5,000,223

-

32,096,624

Page 6
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-5,000,223

41,307,304

-

Balance at 01 January 2014 as restated

Transfers to / from other reserves

Page 7

-

Surplus/(deficit) for the period

32,096,624
-33,655,347
266,963,442

Prior year error n Property Plant and Equipment

Balance at 31 December 2014

268,522,164

Surplus / (deficit) for the period
-

227,214,860

-

Balance at 01 January 2013 as restated

41,307,304

61,108,962

Accumulated
Surplus/(Deficit)
R

Surplus / (deficit) for the period

R

Revaluation Reserve

28

166,105,898

Note

266,963,442

-33,655,347

32,096,624

-

268,522,164

41,307,304

227,214,860

61,108,962

166,105,898

R

Total: Net Assets

31

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Balance at 31 December 2012 as previously reported

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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2014
2013
Note

R

R

Cash flows from operating activities

300,715,958
49,388,322
35,358,652
7,000
140,472,000
3,871,141
71,618,843

266,332,714
41,195,777
26,998,839
1,033,560
140,738,839
3,175,580
53,190,119

-240,335,938
-110,042,499
-130,293,439

-208,075,250
-94,379,273
-113,695,977

60,380,020
0

58,257,464
-0

Purchase of capital assets

-44,484,212

-41,241,607

Net cash flows from investing activities.

-44,484,212

-41,241,607

15,895,808
85,118,663
96,082,436

17,015,857
68,102,806
85,118,663

Receipts
Tuition fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Transfers, public contributions, sponsorships and donations
Government grants and subsidies
Interest
Other Receipts
Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Net cash flows from operating activities

26

Cash flows from investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

3

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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1.00

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.01 Presentation of Financial Statements and Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in terms of the Continuing
Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.
In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or
conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a
Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 26 for First-time
adoption of Standards of GRAP.
1.02 Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.
1.03 Going concern assumption
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.04 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The use of judgment, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing annual financial statements.
These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the annual financial statements.
Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future periods.
Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that may have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Programme funding
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Programme funding is allocated to the college by DHET in terms of the CET Act and the National Norms and Standards for
Funding of TVET Colleges and is determined by the estimated Full Time Equivalent Students (FTEs) of the college. The
allocation is done based on the projected FTEs for the year and if the college fails to register the projected FTEs, a portion
of the programme funding can be clawed back in the following year.
The programme funding is allocated by DHET during their financial year which is from April to March, but for the college
the funds pertain to the college academic and financial year which is from January to December. Once the college has
registered the projected number of FTEs, the suspensive condition of the programme funding grant has been met and the
grant is recognised in full.
The programme funding is paid out partly in cash tranches, paid to the college, and partly through the Persal system of the
Provincial Education Department, directly to the employees of the college. If management personnel are paid from the
programme funding, they should be included in the description. The method and timing of payment of the grant does,
however, not influence the recognition of revenue.

Employee related costs and DHET management fee
In terms of the CET Act, the college is the employer of the non-management personnel. The management personnel,
defined in the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals, have migrated to DHET and are DHET employees.
Management and other personnel are either remunerated directly by the college or by the provincial Department of
Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET. As management personnel are not college employees, their remuneration
cannot be classified as an employee expense of the college and is therefore classified as "DHET management fee".]
Management personnel are remunerated from provincial funds and not from college funds, and this constitutes services in
kind which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in kind"
as part of revenue from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee".]

Campuses used and controlled, but not owned by the college
Certain campuses are used by the college and are not registered in the name of the college. The lack of legal ownership
could affect whether or not the college has control over the campus. Where, inter alia, beneficial control can be illustrated,
the campus in question is recognised, measured and included in the financial statements as property, plant and equipment
in terms the definition of an asset as per the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and
the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment in GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment.
Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions, and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis.
Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively.
In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made:
Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables
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The entity assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the entity
makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a financial asset.
The impairment for trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio
basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators
present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan
balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates
of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the operation surplus
note.
Impairment testing
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use of
estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For noncash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units
of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.
Provisions
Provisions are measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the obligation. In the
process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future to settle the provision management
considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of the provisions raised. This measurement entails
determining what the different potential outcomes are for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those
potential outcomes. Management then assigns a weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that
the outcome will materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored
outcomes are then added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
Useful lives of assets, depreciation and amortisation
The entity's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for these assets. These
estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to be entity specific. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives and vice versa.
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined with
reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are
based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current
use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its
useful life. In evaluating the how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value management
considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.
Effective interest rate
The entity uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in the standards, and applying
professional judgement to the specific circumstances, to discount future cash flows.

Page 11

Page

65

GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Fair value determination of properties (excluding heritage assets)
1.05 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one reporting period.
Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
- the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a
combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in
property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with
an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet
the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any
remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value. Refer to Note 8 for the estimated useful lives.
The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.
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Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.
Derecognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Deemed cost
When the entity initially recognises an asset using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using either cost or
fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition cost). Where the acquisition cost of an asset is not available on the
adoption of the Standards of GRAP, acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date an
entity adopts the Standards of GRAP (measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the fair value of an asset at the
measurement date.
1.06 Inventories
Inventories are assets:
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
- held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
- in the process of production for sale or distribution
Recognition and measurement
Inventories are recognised as an asset if:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
- the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
- distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
- consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out OR weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is
used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
Recognition as an expense
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
1.07 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a
commercial return.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow:

Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a cash-generating intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an
intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment
before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those
future cash flows.
Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the entity:
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- base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of
the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given to
external evidence;
- base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any estimated future
cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the asset's
performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unless a longer period
can be justified; and
- estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating the
projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
- products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,
unless a higher rate can be justified.
Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:
- projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;
- projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the asset
(including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis, to the asset; and
- net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
- cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
- income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount
that the entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
Discount rate
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted.
Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Cash-generating units
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If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the entity determines the recoverable amount of
the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).
If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified
as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or
cash- generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the entity use management's best estimate of future price(s)
that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:
- the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
- the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are affected
by the internal transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a
change is justified.
The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is determined.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on
a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated
as impairment losses on individual assets.
In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
- its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
- its value in use (if determinable); and
- zero
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that noncash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit.
Reversal of impairment loss
The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates
the recoverable amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The
increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of
an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
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After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata
with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment
losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset
contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased
above the lower of:
- its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
- the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.
The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating
asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.
1.08 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
- an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
- an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.
Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits)
that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service.
Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.
A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
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- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion
of employment.
Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment
benefits for one or more employees.
Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under
common control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that
contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees
concerned.
Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; &
- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.
Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time
value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent
with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.
Termination benefits
The entity recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed to
either:
terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
The entity is demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]:
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the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and
the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that material
changes to the plan are not likely.
Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate
discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency and term of the financial
instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the benefit.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall be based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits includes:
long-term compensated absences such as long service or sabbatical leave;
other long service benefits;
long-term disability benefits;
bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable twelve months or more after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service;
deferred compensation paid twelve months or more after the end of the reporting period in which it is earned; and
compensation payable by the entity until an individual enters new employment.
The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits the net total of the following amounts:
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date
minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly
For other long-term employee benefits, the entity recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue,
except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
current service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
the effect of any curtailments or settlements
DHET management fee
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In terms of the CET Act, the college is the employer of the non-management personnel. The management personnel,
defined in the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals, have migrated to DHET and are DHET employees.
[Management personnel are supposed to be remunerated from a separate provincial budget, but in some instances they
are remunerated from the programme funding.]
[If management personnel are remunerated from the programme funding, the following policy should be used:
Management and other personnel are either remunerated directly by the college or by the provincial Department of
Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET. As management personnel are not college employees, their remuneration
cannot be classified as an employee expense of the college and is therefore classified as "DHET management fee".]
[OR]
[If management personnel are remunerated by a separate provincial budget and not from the college programme funding
as it should be, the following policy should be used:
Management personnel are remunerated from provincial funds and not from college funds, and this constitutes services in
kind which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in kind"
as part of revenue from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee".]

1.09 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
A contingent liability is:
- a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
- a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle
the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability
Provisions are recognised when:
- the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation; and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.
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Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the
obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if
it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
Has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
Has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
- necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
- not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes 28 & 28.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
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The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
- financial difficulty of the debtor;
- defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
- breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of
the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
- a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the
ability of entities to repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments,
it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. W here a
fee is charged and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the
obligation at the higher of:
- the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
- the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
1.1 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the college receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in
exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
- the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
- the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.
Interest, royalties, dividends and tuition fees
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:
- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity’s right to receive payment has been
established.
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of instruction.
1.11 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity
in exchange.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity
either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the
extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a nonexchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
entity.
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When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue.
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised as indicated below, the entity recognises an asset in respect of
transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities
The entity recognise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the definition of a
liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition
of a contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.
Fines
Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for
recognition as an asset.
Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the entity.
Where the entity collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.
Bequests
Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity, and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
Services in-kind
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In terms of the CET Act, the college is the employer of the non-management personnel. The management personnel,
defined in the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals, have migrated to DHET and are DHET employees.
Management personnel are remunerated from provincial funds and not from college funds, and this constitutes services in
kind which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in kind"
as part of revenue from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee".]
No other services in-kind are recognised.
Services in kind are not recognised.

Concessionary loans received
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an property, plant and equipment on terms that are not market
related. The portion of the loan that is repayable, along with any interest payments, is an exchange transaction and is
accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments. The off-market portion of the loan is a
non-exchange transaction. The off-market portion of the loan that is recognised as non-exchange revenue is calculated as
the difference between the proceeds received from the loan, and the present value of the contractual cash flows of the
loan, discounted using a market related rate of interest.
The recognition of revenue is determined by the nature of any conditions that exist in the loan agreement that may give
rise to a liability. Where a liability exists the cash flow statement recognises revenue as and when it satisfies the conditions
of the loan agreement.
1.12 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended due to better presentation
and/or better understandability and/or comparability and/or due to the implementation of a new or amended standard, prior
period comparative amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the
correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where
there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is
practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
1.13 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. In considering
each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal
form.
Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but also, for
example, by participation in the policy-making process, material transactions between entities within an economic entity,
interchange of managerial personnel or dependence on technical information.
Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With regard to an
ownership interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance with the definition contained in the Standard of GRAP
on Investments in Associates.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including
those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.
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Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.14 Commitments
The entity discloses each class of capital assets ( PPE, Investment properties, Intangible assets, Biological assets and
Heritage assets) recognized in the financial statements as well as future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for each of the following periods:
- Not later than one year,
- Later than one year and not later than five years, and
- Later than five years.
1.15 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).
Reporting date means the date of the last day of the reporting period to which the financial statements relate. The reporting
date of the entity is 31 March 2014
The entity adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date.
The entity does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the
reporting date.
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2014

2013

R

R

2 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been issued by the Accounting Standards Board, but will only become effective in future periods or have not been
given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The entity has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the
development of accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5:
Standard name

Standard number

Effective date (Periods starting
on or after)

Borrowing costs
Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Levies
Transitional provision Directives

GRAP5 (Revised)
GRAP100 (Revised)
IFRIC21
Directive 2&3&4&6&8

Tuesday, April 1, 2014
Tuesday, April 1, 2014
Tuesday, April 1, 2014
Tuesday, April 1, 2014

Segment Reporting

GRAP18

01-04-2015/Not yet set

Related Party Disclosures
Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
Transfers of functions between entities under common control
Transfers of functions between entities not under common control
Mergers
Statutory Receivables
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP20
GRAP32
GRAP105
GRAP106
GRAP107
GRAP108
GRAP6 (revised 2010)

Not yet set
Not yet set
Wednesday, April 1, 2015
Wednesday, April 1, 2015
Wednesday, April 1, 2015
Not yet set
Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Investments in Associates

GRAP7 (revised 2010)

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Interests in Joint Ventures

GRAP8 (revised 2010)

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities
Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers
Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements Where a Grantor
Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset
Changes in Measurement Bases Following the Initial Adoption of Standards of GRAP

IGRAP11
IGRAP12
IGRAP 17

Wednesday, April 1, 2015
Wednesday, April 1, 2015
Not yet set

Directive11

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
6,635

10,106

Cash at bank

4,915,196

54,853,217

Call deposits

Cash on hand

33,073,082

5,463,383

Call investments

58,087,523

24,791,956

96,082,436

85,118,663

Details
The College maintain two main bank accounts, 1. ABSA Bank (ACC: 4055936513; Standard Bank
(063391732)
d
4 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

31 December 2014
Student debtors
Prepaid expenses

Gross Balances

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Net Balance

R

R

R

9,866,149

-9,866,149 -

3,077,111

3,077,111

Project Debtors

25,532,816

NSFAS Income

11,044,834

11,044,834

Sundry Debtors

1,624,396

1,624,396

Total trade and other receivables

31 December 2013
Student debtors
Prepaid expenses
Projects
NSFAS
Sundry Debtors
Total trade and other receivables

-1,920,000

51,145,306

(11,786,149)

23,612,816

39,359,157

Gross Balances

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Net Balance

R

R

R

7,733,833

-7,733,833

0

2,845,611

2,845,611

22,979,486

22,979,486

11,517,815

11,517,815

953,088
46,029,833

2,104,213
(7,733,833)

39,447,125
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2014

2013

R

R

5 Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Government grants and subsidies

3,052,992

3,472,554

Total other debtors

3,052,992

3,472,554

1,433,233

1,372,275

241,362

183,572

Total

1,674,595

1,555,847

Current

1,674,595

1,555,847

1,674,595

1,555,847

Carrying value of inventory

895,474

438,802

Consumable stores

895,474

438,802

6 Other financial assets
short-term deposits
Listed Shares

7 Inventories
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9,755,373

51,724,744

18,692,693

204,463,771

Vehicles

Furniture & Fittings

Computer Equipment

Total

8,349,688

4,260,172

Vehicles

Furniture & Fittings

Computer Equipment

7,304,470

4,418,246

Furniture & Fittings

Computer Equipment

5

5

3

Office Furniture & Fittings

Computer Hardware

Indefinite Life

20

Useful Life Range in
Years

Vehicles & Plant

Land

Buildings

Land & Buildings

Class

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives:

Estimated useful lives

110,875,848

2,100,492

Vehicles

Total

37,839,167

59,213,473

Buildings

Carrying Value
Opening Balance
R

Land

Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2013

145,618,153

3,717,108

Buildings

Total

42,025,617

87,265,568

Land

Carrying Value
Opening Balance
R

74,165,503

Buildings

Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2014

50,125,459

R

Cost

Land

8 Property, Plant and Equipment

R

-

5,362,219

2,637,836

462,293

2,262,090

41,861,801

2,723,612

4,106,041

2,793,603

17,731,200

14,507,345

Additions

R

Additions

-62,812,656

-14,455,184

-39,523,320

-5,186,451

-3,647,700

4,237,508

12,201,424

4,568,922

70,517,803

50,125,459

Acquisitions through
entity combinations
R

Acquisitions through
entity combinations
R

-

-

141,651,116

R

R

-

-
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Disposals

R

-

14,577,849

18,678,701

7,196,114

76,944,673

52,346,512

-10,639,488

-1,686,375

-3,662,645

-1,642,768

-3,647,700

R

-7,119,496

-2,881,686

-3,060,823

-1,176,987

Depreciation

R

Depreciation

169,743,849

R

-24,125,696

-10,317,677

-10,329,013

R

Transfers

-

9,516,581

2,156,025

6,901,058

459,497

Revaluation
R

-

-3,479,006

2013
Accumulated
Depreciation &
Impairment
R

Cost

R

2013

2014

Disposals

R

Accumulated
Depreciation &
Impairment
R
Carrying Value

Note

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2014
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4,260,172

8,349,688

3,717,108

87,265,568

42,025,617

R

Impairment loss

R

Impairment loss

-

-

145,618,153

R

Carrying Value

R

Impairment reversal

R

Revaluation

-

-

8,099,842

R

-

-8,206,349

-3,130,150

151,029

-227,005

-13,100,065

Other movements

R

Revaluation/Fair Value

-

145,618,153

4,260,172

8,349,688

3,717,108

76,944,673

52,346,512

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
R

-

141,651,116

4,237,508

12,201,424

4,568,922

70,517,803

50,125,459

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
R
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Note

2014

2013

R

R

9 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors
NSFAS Refund Due
Other payables
Student Debtors with Credit balances
Total creditors

1,541,247
356,894
398,466
13,455,720
15,752,327

2,823,294
770,323
2,914,758
6,508,375

11 Provisions
Reconciliation of Movement in Provision - 2013

Performance Bonus
R

Opening Balance
Provisions Raised
Closing Balance

Provision for Leave Long Service Awards
Pay
R
R

-

620,603
620,603

-

8,892,196
40,371,618
124,508
49,388,322

7,278,416
33,698,651
218,710
41,195,777

216,788
216,788

147,844
147,844

34,283,395
858,470
35,141,864

26,317,749
704,371
27,022,120

35,358,652

27,169,964

1,177,345
1,177,345
1,177,345

1,293,895
1,293,895
1,293,895

3,871,141
3,871,141

3,175,580
3,175,580

98,894
41,850
140,744

136,510
136,510

12 Tuition fees
Tuition fees - students (Report 191)
Tuition fees - students (NCV)
Other Fees
Total Tuition Fees
13 Sale of goods & rendering of services
Sale of goods
Book sales
Rendering of services
Projects Income
Photocopies,workshops held at campus and corporate training
Total sale of goods and rendering of services
14 Rental of facilities and equipment
Rental of facilities
Total rentals
15 Investment income
Interest revenue
Total investment income
16 Other income
From exchange transactions
Sundry income
Bad Debts Recovered
From non-exchange transactions
Tender fees
Insurance pay-outs
NSFAS Bursuries
Other Bursuries
Fair Value of Assets

21,900
229,022
58,571,052
1,962,199
9,516,581 70,300,754
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147,662
50,519,452
1,092,601
51,759,714

Other Provisions

Total

R

R
-

620,603
620,603
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Note

2014

2013

R

R

17 Government grants and subsidies
Reconciliation of Movement - 2014

Balance unspent at Current year receipts
beginning of year
R

Earmarked recurrent funding
Earmarked salaries
Total Government Grant and Subsidies
Reconciliation of Movement - 2013

-

R
30,429,501
110,042,499
140,472,000

Balance unspent at Current year receipts
beginning of year
R

-

R
46,359,566
94,379,273
140,738,839

Public contributions - Unconditional
Total public contributions and donations

7,000
7,000

1,033,560
1,033,560

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities

-7,000
-7,000

-1,033,560
-1,033,560

Employee related costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages

110,042,499

94,379,273

Total employee related costs

110,042,499

94,379,273

12,643,684
12,643,684

10,336,202
10,336,202

10,639,489
10,639,489

7,119,494
7,119,494

7,950,253
7,950,253

5,161,234
5,161,234

1,406,537
508,211
3,673,618
608,597
6,196,963

1,519,087
408,122
2,438,990
191,400
4,557,598

Earmarked recurrent funding
Earmarked salaries
Total Government Grant and Subsidies

Conditions met - Conditions still to be
transferred to
met - remain
revenue
liabilities
R
R
-30,429,501
-110,042,499
-140,472,000
Conditions met - Conditions still to be
transferred to
met - remain
revenue
liabilities
R
R
-46,359,566
-94,379,273
-140,738,839
-

18 Public contributions and donations

19 Employee related costs and DHET management fee

20 Debt impairment
Changes in debt impairment provision
21 Depreciation and Amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
22 Repairs and maintenance
Property, plant and equipment
23 Contracted services
Insurance
Cleaning material
Rent copiers
Rent office
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Note

2014

2013

R

R

58,571,052
2,464,566
61,035,617

50,688,241
1,057,907
51,746,148

262,200
444,494
48,942
1,452,991
32,583
473,605
252,374
102,436
47,697
2,401,432
4,099,066
76,224
22,819,245

236,713
387,326
7,597
996,077
21,037
564,405
161,392
61,497
2,375,645
3,296,165
63,681
20,421,414
714
28,593,663

24 Grants and subsidies paid
NSFAS Bursaries
Other Bursaries
25 General expenses
Audit fees
Bank charges
Consulting fees
Conferences an functions
Council Expenses
Invigilation Fees
Internal Audit Fees
Membership and acreditation
Rates & Taxes
Staff Welfare
Student Activities
Training
Project Expenses
Sundry expenses

32,513,288

Page 32

86

Page

GERT SIBANDE TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014
Note

2014

2013

R

R

32,096,624
10,639,489
-3,871,141
12,643,684

41,307,304
7,119,494
-3,195,394
10,336,202

-423,447
51,085,210

55,567,606

-456,672
87,968

175,539
-1,347,760

26 Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Depreciation & amortisation
Interest income (non-cash)
Debt impairment
Impairment loss/reversal of impairment loss on assets
Other movements
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Net cash flows from operating activities

419,562
9,243,952

3,862,079

60,380,020

58,257,464

285,700
1,082,631

285,700

1,368,331

285,700

27 Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Alleged Fraud
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Alleged fraud
Condoned or written off by entity
Transfer to receivables for recovery – not condoned
Total
Incident
proceedings

Disciplinary steps/criminal

During the year 2013 and 2014 the college lost R285 700 and R1
082 631 respectively to suspend salaries fraud. These amounts
are preliminary and the investigations are continuing.

30 Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2014, the entity
had accumulated profits of R 243 814 110 and that the entity's
total assets exceed its liabilities by R 266 963 444
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations
and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is
dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is
that the member continue to procure funding for the ongoing
operations for the entity.
31 Net Assets
In terms of the CET Act, the Minister of Higher Education and
Training may close a public college subject to certain conditions.
In such a case, the net assets of the college, comprising the
accumulated surplus and reserves, will vest in the Minister of
Higher Education and Training after the settlement of all liabilities.
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